


From:

To: CMTEDD FOI
Subject: Inquiry for FOI Request
Date: Tuesday, 9 January 2024 4:16:41 PM
You don't often get email from . Learn why this is important

Caution: This email originated from outside of the ACT Government. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is

safe. Learn why this is important

Good afternoon,
| am looking to submit an FOI request for the following:

"Any documents that discuss, list or mention the financial impact to the ACT government
or the Canberra region as a whole resulting from the 2024 Summernats Festival."

Could you please confirm if you are best suited to answering this request? If so, | would
like to formally submit this as a Freedom of Information request under the Act. If not, if
you have any suggestions on other areas | could contact that would be much appreciated.

For additional context:

e | am particularly interested in any documents that discuss the costs of the
increased ACT and NSW police over the period of the Summernats Festival;
e | am also interested in documents that discuss the financial benefits the festival has

for the ACT region;
e |fthere are documents that are not specifically related to the 2024 Summernats
Festival, but rather the festival in general, | also would like to receive those

documents.

| am happy to only receive final versions of documents, and don't need to receive drafts or
duplicates. | am happy for any contact or personal information to be redacted from the
documents.

Please feel free to contact me by email if | can provide any further assistance.

Kind regards,



ACT

Government

CMTEDDFOI2024-007

Chief Minister, Treasury and
Economic Development

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUEST

| refer to your application under section 30 of the Freedom of Information Act 2016 (the
Act), received by the Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate
(CMTEDD) on 9 January 2024 in which you specifically sought:

“Any documents that discuss, list or mention the financial impact to the ACT government or
the Canberra region as a whole resulting from the 2024 Summernats Festival

1. | am particularly interested in any documents that discuss the costs of the increased ACT and
NSW police over the period of the Summernats Festival;

2. | am also interested in documents that discuss the financial benefits the festival has for the
ACT region;

3. If there are documents that are not specifically related to the 2024 Summernats Festival, but
rather the festival in general, | also would like to receive those documents.”

On 19 January 2024 a freedom of information officer contacted you to clarify part of your
scope:

“particularly on point #3 of the below scope, is there a specific timeframe frame to include
other than 20247 As this will help narrow down our searches to provide you with information
in relation to your request.”

On 19 January 2024 you confirmed:

“Could | please set a timeframe of the last 5 years? If this would be too voluminous, | am
happy to reduce the scope further if provided further information about the quantity of
documents found.”

On 23 January 2024 a freedom of information officer contacted you to clarify your scope
further:

“with point #3, if the time period could be amended to reflect the last 3 years, instead of 5
years, as that will make this a more manageable request? And could | also please confirm
with you that this includes emails? As | note in the scope you have specified “final versions of
documents, and don't need to receive drafts or duplicates” and a lot of the emails could be
considered draft documents.”

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development
GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | phone: 6207 7754 | www.act.gov.au



On 23 January 2024 you confirmed:

“I can confirm that | am looking for emails as part of the request. To clarify, | am only
seeking emails that contain information about the financial impact of the Summernats
Festival on the ACT government or Canberra region as a whole.

Please amend the scope to only include documents over the past three years”
Authority

I am an Information Officer appointed by the Director-General of CMTEDD under section 18
of the Act to deal with access applications made under Part 5 of the Act.

Timeframes
In accordance with section 40 of the Act, CMTEDD is required to provide a decision on your
access application within 30 working days.

As this matter required third party consultation, the decision due date was extended by 15
working days, in accordance with section 40(2) of the Act.

Therefore, a decision is due by 14 March 2024.
Decision on access
Searches were completed for relevant documents based on information provided by you.

| have included as Attachment A, a schedule of relevant documents. This schedule provides
a description of each document that falls within the scope of your request and the access
decision for each of those documents.

| have decided to grant full access to Eight documents, partial access to ten documents and
to refuse access to one document relevant to your request.

My access decisions are detailed further in the following statement of reasons, in
accordance with section 54(2) of the Act, and the documents released to you are provided
as Attachment B to this letter.

With point #1 of your scope, you will need to seek ACT Policing information through the
Australian Federal Police (AFP) FOI area. Given the contractual arrangements, ACT Policing
come under the AFP who operate under the Commonwealth Freedom of Information Act
1998. The following link is included to assist you with this: https://www.afp.gov.au/about-
us/governance-and-accountability/freedom-of-information

Statement of Reasons
In reaching my access decisions, | have taken the following into account:

e the Act;

e the scope of your requested information;

e third party consultation;

e the content of the documents that fall within the scope of your request.



Exemptions claimed

My reasons for deciding not to grant access to the identified documents and components of
these documents are as follows:

Information that would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest to disclose under the
test set out in section 17 of the Act

Public Interest

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker | am required to
decide where, on balance, public interest lies. As part of this process, | must consider factors
favouring disclosure and nondisclosure.

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute, the
term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test, to
be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the public
interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within
the scope of your request, | have identified that the following public interest factors are
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within these documents is
within the ‘public interest’.

Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest under Schedule 2 s2.1:

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the
following:
(i)  promote open discussion of public affairs and enhance the government’s
accountability.

(iii)  contribute to positive and informed debate on important issues or matters of
public interest.

(iv)  ensure effective oversight of expenditure of public funds.

Having considered the factors identified as relevant in this matter, | consider that release of
the information contained in these documents may reasonably be expected to promote
open discussion about government operations within the community, particularly those
relating to event spending and the expenditure of public funds.

Noting that the Act has an express pro-disclosure bias which reflects the importance of
public access to government information for the proper working of a representative
democracy, | must consider the above factors for disclosure against those factors favouring
nondisclosure. However, in this case | do give some weight to the factors for disclosure.

Factors favouring nondisclosure in the public interest under Schedule 2 s2.2:

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following:

(ii) prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to privacy or any other right under
the Human Rights Act 2004.

(xi) prejudice trade secrets, business affairs or research of an agency or person



(xii) prejudice an agency’s ability to obtain confidential information.

When considering the information and factors in favour of nondisclosure, | have considered
the personal information in the documents. | consider it unreasonable to release
information that could identify the details of the person or persons that have performed
their duties in line with their employment or been in contact with or cooperated in a
regulatory activity with the ACT Government, on behalf their employing entity. | believe the
release of this information may prejudice the protection of these individuals’ right to privacy
or any other right under the Human Rights Act 2004. | am satisfied that this factor favouring
nondisclosure should be afforded significant weight as it relates to the individuals’ privacy.

Having reviewed the information, | consider that the protection of an individual’s right to
privacy, is a significant factor. Release of information concerning individuals working within
the ACT Public Service is generally not considered to prejudice the protection of an
individual’s right to privacy. However, where mobile phone numbers may be used for home
and work purposes, this information is redacted, as it could or would reasonably be
expected to prejudice an individual’s right to privacy under the Human Rights Act 2004.

Schedule 2 section 2.2(a)(xi) allows for government information to be withheld from release
if disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to prejudice the trade secrets,
business affairs or research of an agency or person. The information withheld from release
could reasonably be expected to unfairly prejudice the business affairs and trade secrets of
a third party, along with unwanted commercial implications. Some of the information
provided has commercial sensitivity, and in making my decision, | am of the view that it was
provided with an expectation of confidentiality for material that may negatively impact on
their ability to negotiate and arrange future events at the national and international level.

Additionally, under the guidelines for Major Event Funding https://tourism.act.gov.au/wp-
content/uploads/2022/09/Major-Event-Fund-Guidelines-2022-23.pdf the issue of
confidentiality is addressed ‘Details of applications will not be made available to third
parties without permission. However, applicants should be aware that the provisions of the
Freedom of Information Act 2016 apply to documents in the ACT Government’s possession.’ |
therefore, weigh the factor for nondisclosure of information provided as part of an
application for major event funding heavily as the intent within the guidelines is that the
information should remain confidential, and could reasonably reveal trade secrets and/or
lead to commercial advantage for competitors.

Having applied the test outlined in section 17 of the Act and deciding that release of some
of the information contained in the documents is not in the public interest to release, | have
chosen to redact this specific information in accordance with section 50(2). Noting the pro-
disclosure intent of the Act, | am satisfied that redacting only the information that | believe
is not in the public interest to release will ensure that the intent of the Act is met and will
provide you with access to information held by CMTEDD within the scope of your request.

Charges

Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2017 (No 2) processing charges
are applicable for this request because the total number of pages to be released to you
exceeds the charging threshold of 50 pages. However, the charges have been waived in
accordance with section 107(2)(b) of the Act.



Online publishing — Disclosure Log

Under section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access applications
called a disclosure log.

Your original access application and my decision will be published on the CMTEDD
disclosure log. Your personal contact details will not be published.

https://www.cmtedd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log-2024

Ombudsman Review

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of
the Act. You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73 of
the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is provided to you, or a longer
period allowed by the Ombudsman.
We recommend using this form Applying for an Ombudsman Review to ensure you provide
all of the required information. Alternatively, you may write to the Ombudsman at:

The ACT Ombudsman

GPO Box 442

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal
GPO Box 370

Canberra City ACT 2601

Telephone: (02) 6207 1740
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/

Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone on
6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

Katharine Stuart

Information Officer

Information Access Team

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate
13 March 2024









From: "Lalor, Justin" <Justin.Lalor@act.gov.au>
Sent: 18/09/2020 10:05 AM
To: "Kobus, Jonathan" <Jonathan.Kobus@act.gov.au>
Cc: "Campbell, Morgan" <Morgan.Campbell@act.gov.au>; "Comacchio, Teresa"
<Teresa.Comacchio@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Summernats 2021 - economic benefits
Attachments: Summernats - economic benefits to the ACT.docx
OFFICIAL
Hi all,

Here you go. Figures updated to include 2020 results, along with the contracted amount for the 2021 event.

| did pop a note in there that 2020 was held in bushfire smoke affected conditions, which would explain why the
attendance dipped just below the expected range of 100-110,000.

Cheers,

Justin.

From: Kobus, Jonathan <Jonathan.Kobus@act.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 18 September 2020 9:49 AM

To: Lalor, Justin <Justin.Lalor@act.gov.au>

Cc: Campbell, Morgan <Morgan.Campbell@act.gov.au>; Comacchio, Teresa <Teresa.Comacchio@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Summernats 2021 - economic benefits

OFFICIAL

Sorry with attachment now

From: Campbell, Morgan <Morgan.Camnbell@act.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 18 September 2020 9:28 AM

To: Kobus, Jonathan <Jonathan.Kobus@act.gov.au>; Comacchio, Teresa <Teresa.Comacchio@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Summernats 2021 - economic benefits

OFFICIAL
Hi there
Possibly a bit pre-emptive but do you guys have updates on the figures in the attached?

Cheers
M

Morgan Campbel! | Senior Director, Strategic Coordination and Governance
Economic Development Division | Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

From: Johnston, ClaireV <ClaireV.Johnston@act.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 17 September 2020 4:46 PM

To: Campbell, Morgan <Morgan.Campbell@act.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Summernats 2021 - economic benefits

OFFICIAL



Hey MC

Canyou provide any updated info for this?

From: Linnane, Amy <Amy.Linnane@act.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 17 September 2020 4:20 PM

To: Johnston, ClaireV <ClaireV.Johnston@act.gov.au>
Cc: Polglase, David <David.Polglase@act.gov.au>
Subject: Summernats 2021 - economic benefits

OFFICIAL
Hi Claire,
I’m thinking we might as well start preparing for Summernats given we’re starting to prepare for it already.

Can the ED team provide some updated info on the economic benefits of Summernats? | have attached the section
from last year’s talking points, the figures and dates will just need to be updated.

Thanks!
Amy

Amy Linnane | Content Director, Communications and Engagement

P: 02 62077466 | e: amy.linnane@act.gov.au

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

Level 5, Canberra Nara Centre, 1 Constitution Avenue, Canberra City | GPO Box 158 Canberra City ACT 2601 | www.act.gov.au



ECONOMIC BENEFITS TO THE ACT

Attendee numbers 2016-2020:

e Summernats expects attendees numbers to range between 100,000 to 110,000.
2016: 102,237
2017: 119,184 (30" year event anniversary)
2018: 105,247
2019: 100,848
2020: 99,240 (bushfire smoke affected)

e Direct expenditure in the ACT by interstate and international visitors who specifically
travelled to Canberra for the 2020 event was estimated at $29.7 million.

e The average daily expenditure of interstate overnight spectators to the event was
$184 per person in 2020, while interstate overnight entrants spent an average of
$230 per night.

BACKGROUND/SENSITIVITIES (not for distribution):

e Inrecognition of the economic activity generated by the event during a quiet period
in the national capital, the ACT Government agreed to a three-year funding
agreement with the event organisers of $200,000 per year from 2018 to 2020 from
the Major Events Fund (MEF).

e This agreement has since been extended and enhanced to support Summernats
through the MEF up to and including the 2023 event. This includes $300,000 in
support for the 2021 event.

e Safety will always be a key consideration for Summernats.
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Hi Viv
Hope your week is going well.

Just spoke to Ellie from Summernats and she said you manage the economic benefit analysis for the event. Are you
able to please share the economic dollar figure for the 2022 event and any forecasted figure for the 2023 event?

| just need it to support the provision of light rail services for the event.
Thank you @)

Rebecca Gaukroger | A/g Director, Operations and Performance
Phone 02 6207 7555 | Email rebecca.gaukroger@act.gov.au
Light Rail Operations |Transport Canberra and City Services | ACT Government

480 Northbourne Avenue, Dickson | GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | www.tccs.act.gov.au | www.transport.act.gov.au

Connected services for the people of Canberra

ﬁ'@ Transport Canberra






























































































































Background and Methodology

BACKGROUND

Summernats 35 was held at Exhibition Park, Canberra between January 5 and
8, 2023. After the COVID-19 pandemic forced the cancellation of the 2021
event, 2022 went ahead, albeit against a backdrop of varying public health
restrictions. This year's event was the first event in three years to operate
under similar conditions to the pre-COVID period

PURPOSE OF THE RESEARCH
IER was engaged by Summernats to undertake a research study for the 2023

event. The objectives of this study were:

1. To provide an estimate of the economic impact generated by the
event for the Canberra economy

2. Tounderstand the extent to which the event was responsible for
bringing visitors to Canberra

To understand the demographic profile of visitors at the event
4. Toassess the channels that drove awareness of the event

5. Tounderstand visitor behaviour in Canberra whilst visiting the
event

6. To assess perceptions and visitor satisfaction with various
touchpointsof the event

7. Togather any other insights from visitors that can be used to
help shape the event for future years

8. Tounderstand the perceptions of entrants involved with the event

The research study contained a number of elements as outlined below: -

* Quantitative attendee research study
«  Economic impact assessment

RESEARCH METHODS

In order to collect data for this study, IER used an online survey that was sent
out at the completion of the event. The survey was sent to a database of
Entrants, Exhibitors and ticket buyers. This survey contained the majority of the
questions which informed this study

The research process delivered the following samples:

Spectators

Entrants

Exhibitors

The samples generated for both the spectator and entrant groups are
significant enough to provide a high level of confidence in the research insights
The sample of exhibitors should be considered indicative due to its size.
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Background

1

10.

Mr Andy Lopez, Co-owner of Summernats, requested to meet with you as Assistant
Minister for Economic Development following initial contact in November 2020.

It has been confirmed with your office that a Directorate representative is not required
to attend the meeting, which has been scheduled for Wednesday 20 January 2021 at
3.00pm (via Webex).

Summernats is recognised as one of Canberra’s biggest annual events and is the largest
automotive lifestyle event in the southern hemisphere.

Traditionally staged in January over four days at Exhibition Park in Canberra (EPIC), the
event features a wide range of activities including cruising, show ‘n’ shine, burnouts,
trade expos, driving events, food stalls, fireworks and major music acts.

The event is a major economic driver for the Canberra region. There are no
parliamentary sittings in January and accommodation occupancy rates are generally
lower for this period.

As shown below, Summernats traditionally attracts a combined attendance in the
order of 100,000, with the 2017 event achieving a record attendance figure:

2016 event: 102,237

2017 event: 119,184 (30%" year event anniversary)
2018 event: 105,247

2019 event: 100,848

e. 2020 event: 99,240 (bushfire smoke affected)

Research conducted on the 2020 event indicated that 39,459 interstate and
international visitors travelled to Canberra specifically for the event, generating an
estimated $29.7 million in direct expenditure for the local economy. These visitors
were also responsible for an estimated 125,941 visitor nights in the ACT. A copy of the
2020 Summernats research report is at Attachment A.

oo oo

Summernats is committed to following a strategy that continues to grow the event’s
attendance, reach and awareness. Key focus areas include:

a. Broadening the core audience to include more women and families;

b. Growing length of stay and economic impact locally through cross promotions
and programming;

c. Further cementing Summernats as an iconic “bucket list” event for
national/international event goers; and

d. Building local pride in Summernats as an event, an employer, community
partner, and driver of tourism and economic impacts.

In recognition of the economic activity generated by Summernats during a quiet period
in the national capital, the ACT Government agreed to a three-year funding agreement
with event organisers of $200,000 per annum from 2018 to 2020. This funding was
provided through the Major Event Fund (MEF) administered by VisitCanberra.

This agreement was subsequently extended and enhanced to support Summernats
through the MEF over four years up to and including the 2023 event — subject to key
performance indicators (KPIs) tied to economic impact, spectator satisfaction and
patron safety.

Tracking No.: CMTEDD2020/5701 2
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Issues

11. Given the ongoing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and associated restrictions
related to events and mass gatherings, Summernats organisers publicly announced on
30 September 2020 that the traditional January 2021 event would be postponed until
2022.

12. Mr Lopez alsoindicated that ACT Health’s ongoing plans to use EPIC as a COVID-19
testing facility was a factor in the decision to postpone the 2021 event.

13. Planning has been underway to deliver a smaller-scale event at EPIC on the Canberra
Day long weekend in March 2021 (5-7 March). This event was to be delivered in line
with the ACT’s COVID Safe Event Protocol under the title of Rev, Rock n Roll. The ACT
Public Health Directions currently set out a limitation of up to 8,000 people to gather
with an event exemption.

14. Due to ongoing uncertainty about travel restrictions in Greater Sydney, Summernats
organisers have advised they will not proceed with the Rev, Rock and Roll event.
Despite the small attendance size, entrants and spectators from Sydney were key to
the success of a new event and there is no guarantee the market will openin time to
support a March delivery.

15. The Rev, Rock n Roll was to include some familiar Summernats elements, such as the
Burnout Masters Grand Final, cruising, show and shine displays and an automotive
retail expo. Organisers were also considering additional ways to activate the event
outside EPIC, including a possible Braddon cruising precinct and a wider-reaching City
Cruise.

16. Summernats organisers have indicated that affected ticket holders unable to travel to
Canberra will be eligible for a full refund. Planning for 2022 will now commence.

17. Summernats is staged each year under a Venue Hire Agreement (VHA) with Venues
Canberra. The current VHA covers the event being held at EPIC for the four-year period
2020 to 2023.

18. Inthe lead up to Summernats, several planning meetings take place that include a
wide range of ACT Government stakeholders including ACT Policing, ACT Fire and
Rescue, ACT Ambulance, ACT Health, Roads ACT/TCCS, Venues Canberra and Access
Canberra.

Financial Implications

19. The current four-year Major Event Fund (MEF) agreement committed the following
financial support to the organisers of Summernats:

a. 2020 event: $250,000
b. 2021 event: $300,000
c. 2022 event: $350,000
d. 2023 event: $400,000

20. Annual incremental increases in funding support were made subject to the
achievement of KPIs tied to economic impact, spectator satisfaction and patron safety.
Provided KPIs are successfully achieved, the MEF agreement is valued at $1.3 million
over the four-year period.

Tracking No.: CMTEDD2020/5701 3
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21. It should be noted that the full funding amount for 2021 will be provided to
Summernats organisers. The funding commitment was provided to support delivering
the modified March 2021 event in a COVID Safe manner. The planning for two
alternate COVID safe event concepts has significant up-front costs.

22. Summernats will do an acquittal of ACT Government funding and any residual funds
will be applied to the 2022 event.

23. Venues Canberra’s whole-of-EPIC venue hire fee for the January 2021 event was to be
$147,652 plus CPI (GST exclusive). This foregone revenue has been factored into
documentation on financial impacts experienced by Venues Canberra in 2020-21.

24. The current VHA allows for cancellation fees to be charged, however, Venues Canberra
has confirmed with the ACT Government Solicitor that cancellation fees can be waived.
The Territory will forego $29,530.40 (GST exclusive) in cancellation fees — which
constitutes 20 per cent of the total hire fee.

Consultation

Internal
25. Venues Canberra, Events ACT and Access Canberra have been consulted in the
preparation of this brief.

Cross Directorate
26. Whole-of-government collaboration across a variety of directorates supports
Summernats planning and the coordination of regulatory approvals.

External
27. The ACT Government works closely with Summernats organisers to support the
planning of the event each year.

Work Health and Safety

28. The safety of spectators, participants/entrants, suppliers, contractors, volunteers and
staff will always be a key consideration for Summernats organisers.

29. Access Canberra has a strong compliance presence throughout the Summernats event,
in partnership with agencies such as ACT Policing.

30. Access Canberra compliance inspectors, including those delegated as Public Health
Officers, conduct inspections throughout the event. Particular consideration would be
given to the requirements under the Liquor Act 2010, the Security industry Act 2003
and the Public Health Directions.

31. The Access Canberra Vehicle Safety Standards Assistant Director attend daily briefings
when the event is on and identify and respond to any potential vehicle related
compliance concerns.

32. Proactive inspections also occur during the ‘bump in’ of the event prior to
commencement.

33. Vehicle Safety Standards inspectors enter the event for the purpose of vehicle
compliance inspections for the City Cruise event. Inspectors conduct visual vehicle
inspections on the day of the event to ensure that vehicles meet the minimum
standards and have the appropriate registration/permit.

Tracking No.: CMTEDD2020/5701 4
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Benefits/Sensitivities

34.

35.

36.

3/

38.

39.

Events are proven visitation drivers that provide compelling reasons to visit a
destination.

The MEF supports the attraction, acquisition, development and promotion of major
events that demonstrate capacity to drive overnight visitation from interstate and/or
international audiences, consumers and event participants.

Summernats supports exposure to almost every sector of the local tourism industry,
including accommodation, attractions, cafes, restaurants/bars, tours and transport
providers.

Summernats organisers are keen to maintain a presence in the ACT and to significantly
grow event attendance, which will in turn support growth in tourism visitation and
economic return.

The event generates widespread media coverage. However, some elements including
anti-social behaviour and incidents at the event have been subject to negative scrutiny
in the past.

Organisers have demonstrated a strong commitment towards delivering a more
inclusive and family-friendly event, which has been supported through event
programming and messaging.

Communications, media and engagement implications

40. The future of Summernats in Canberra, and the efforts of the ACT Government to
retain the event in the nation’s capital, continues to be subject to high public and
media interest.

Signatory Name: Jonathan Kobus Phone: x53185
Action Officer: Justin Lalor Phone: x72884
Attachments
~ Attachment Title
Attachment A Summernats Research Report 2020

Tracking No.: CMTEDD2020/5701 5
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Background

il

10.

VisitCanberra has received and assessed a Major Event Fund (MEF) application
(Attachments C-G) from the Summernats Pty Ltd that requests funding support for
Summernats across a four-year period (encompassing the 2024 to 2027 events).

A four-year funding agreement for the 2020 to 2023 events has just concluded that
committed $1.3 million from the MEF. The investment started with a funding
commitment of 250,000 in 2020 and concluded with $400,000 in 2023.

Summernats is seeking ACT Government commitment to a new four-year $2.3 million
funding agreement. The proposed multi-year investment starts with $500,000 in 2024,
increasing by $50,000 per annum upon achieving KPIs. This would result in the event in
the final year of the agreement receiving $650,000.

MEF funding would support enhanced event operational delivery and marketing. The
phased increase in funding aligns with anticipated event delivery cost increases.

Summernats is the largest automotive lifestyle event in the southern hemisphere, with
a wide range of activities including cruising, show ‘n’ shine, burnouts, trade expos,
driving events, international food stalls, fireworks and major music acts.

The event is a major economic driver for Canberra. In 2023, Summernats attracted a
total of 123,298 attendances, eclipsing the previous record of 108,622 in 2017. Of the
2023 attendances, 67,492 were unique visitors (more than double the 31,123 unique
visitors of the 2022 event).

Research company IER Pty Ltd was commissioned by Summernats Pty Ltd to quantify
the value of hosting Summernats in the ACT. The economic impact of Summernats on
the ACT was $36.4 million, which is 18 per cent higher than the previous record in
2020. This was driven by the significant growth in out-of-territory visitors to the event
and inflationary impacts.

The IER report also indicated that in 2023, 51,889 unique visitors from outside the ACT
travelled for Summernats, with 79 per cent being interstate visitors on overnight trips.

Attendance and economic impact data for 2019 to 2023 events are included below:

Summernats 2019 100,848 $28.5 million
Summernats 2020 99,240 (bushfire smoke affected) $29.7 million
Summernats 2021 N/A — event cancelled N/A
Summernats 2022 75,412 (COVID affected) $20.2 million
Summernats 2023 123,298 $36.4 million

Summernats is committed to following a strategy that continues to grow the event’s

attendance, reach and awareness. Key focus areas include:

e Broadening the core audience to include more women and families;

e  Growing length of stay and economic impact locally through cross promotions and
programming;

e  Further cementing Summernats as an iconic “bucket list” event for
national/international event goers; and

e Building local pride in Summernats as an event, an employer, community partner,
and driver of tourism and economic impacts.
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Based on historical benchmarking data, Summernats Pty Ltd. estimates the following
outcomes from future editions of the event:

e Economic impact of $36 million;
e 49,994 visitors from outside the ACT; and

e An average length of stay of 3.2 nights for spectators and 4.2 nights for entrants.

The cost to Summernats of staging the event in 2024 is estimated to be $7.2 million.

Issues

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

2L,

22.

It is recommended that the event is supported with up to $450,000 in 2024 and
increasing by $25,000 each year of the agreement to a maximum (cap) of $500,000.

$50,000 of the contribution in each year will be linked to the following KPI’s:
e 515,000 where total economic contribution is greater than $30 million.

e 520,000 on receipt of an environmental and sustainability plan that supports the
ACT’s net zero objectives and reporting against implementation of the plan in the
post event evaluation report.

e 515,000 for compliance with EPA regulations for noise and air pollution.

The MEF budget is not confirmed beyond the 2024-25 financial year. To enable
Summernats to proceed with certainty and not have to reapply for funding following
the 2025 event, it is proposed that funding for the final two years is supported
contingent on budget approval.

If KPIs are met, the total investment over four years will be a maximum of $1.925
million.

MEF support has been an integral part of growing Summernats to where it is today. It
has allowed greater investment in marketing and programming targeted at non-
traditional audience segments.

The event now brings $36 million in economic benefit to the Territory but sustaining
that growth and delivering an excellent event experience for attendees and the
Canberra community requires increased investment in key areas.

Congestion, behaviour and safety are three major challenges for the event, and these
contributed to a reduced Net Promoter Score for 2023 in comparison to the last three
years. The organisers have implemented several approaches to address these,
including appointing Sheridan Consulting Group to oversee and implement all security
and safety plans.

The Summernats application was assessed by a VisitCanberra panel against key metrics
including economic benefit, marketing impact, social and community benefit, event
leveraging opportunities and event management capacity/capability.

The application scored 7.7 out of 10 based on these metrics, which falls in the ‘Very
Good’ range (see Attachment A).
Further detail on the panel’s assessment of this application is outlined below.

e Summernats is a major user of locally based event infrastructure and personnel.
The event organisers recognise significant opportunities for local business
engagement across tourism and hospitality sectors. The event is also delivered at a
time of year that is normally quiet in the region’s tourism and events calendar.
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e Event organisers have in-depth understanding of their current target audience,
but that it was not clear how the marketing strategy, creative and messaging was
seeking to appeal to a more diverse mix of new attendees or audience segments
(e.g. female and family market), or how it would showcase the Canberra region
more broadly.

e The event clearly delivers significant economic benefit to the ACT economy.

e Summernats has developed a comprehensive risk assessment and management
plan for the 2024 event.

The panel noted the application does not include detail about offsetting the carbon
footprint or addressing the total environmental impact of the event. There is no plan
showing how Summernats will commit to or take action to reduce the event’s
environmental impact or elevate sustainability as a priority. There is no reference on
how the event will support the ACT Government’s commitment to net zero emissions
by 2045.

As a result, the panel recommends that Summernats be asked to develop a policy or
strategy about their commitment to sustainability and alignment with ACT
Government climate action commitments. The development of a carbon offset or an
environmental, sustainability and governance plan would be required for Summernats
to receive an increase in funding for the 2025 event.

It should be noted that the event does have a requirement to comply with measures
under the Environment Protection Act 1997. Following the 2023 event, Venues
Canberra received a show cause notice from the Environment Protection Authority in
relation to noise exceedances. Venues Canberra has received a revised operations plan
from Summernats with regard to the 2024 event which will contribute towards a
reduction in noise generated throughout the event.

The Office for Climate Action suggested an opportunity to expand Summernats’
involvement in the Sustainable Events Program administered by EPSDD. The purpose
of this program is to support and provide advice to event organisers to make events
more sustainable and climate friendly.

Participating events get access to free signage, equipment, water units and emission
reduction advice. In return, they must report on waste that they’ve diverted from
landfill, how they’ve increased recycling, reduced energy and water usage.
Summernats may also consider showcasing zero emission vehicles at the event, as an
opportunity to consider educating the community about electric vehicles.

Financial Implications

28.

29.

A separate funding request has been submitted by Summernats organisers to the City
Renewal Authority (CRA) to deliver the Summernats Fringe Festival in Braddon. The
Fringe event is contingent on ACT Government funding. On 27 September 2023, the
CRA Board will consider funding of $360,000 over three years (less than what was
requested by Summernats), co-funded by the CRA and the CCMIL (City Centre
Marketing and Improvements Levy).

The Territory has a Venue Hire Agreement (VHA) in place with Summernats. The VHA
allows for the Territory to undertake at EPIC an annual capital upgrade program worth
$100,000 each year, for the purpose of benefiting the event. The Territory also waives
its rights to carpark fees, valued at an estimated $30,000 each year.
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titled ‘Promoting Visitor Experience and Delivering Great Events’.

Funding has been allocated to the MEF until 2023-25, enabling two years of funding to
be allocated to Summernats.

For stronger alignment with the city brand, Summernats organisers should provide
more information on ways they plan to address the event’s environmental impacts or
elevate sustainability initiatives.

Recognising crowd behavior issues at the 2023 event, the VisitCanberra team will work
with event organisers to monitor the effectiveness of the mitigation strategies they
have in place.

Communications, media and engagement implications

55. Pending yourapproval to provide funding support for Summernats to the level
recommended, VisitCanberra will liaise directly with Summernats Pty Ltd to confirm
MEF arrangements.

56. A letter to Mr Andy Lopez, Co-Owner and Director of Summernats Pty Ltd, will also be
sent to formally confirm the funding outcome, which is included for your signature at
Attachment B.

57. Media opportunities regarding MEF support for Summernats would be confirmed with
your office in consultation with the Summernats Pty Ltd.

Signatory Name: Jonathan Kobus Phone: x53185
Action Officer: Teresa Comacchio Phone: x56001
Attachments
Attachment Title
Attachment A Event Assessment Matrix — MEF proposal — Summernats — FINAL
Attachment B Letter — Chief Minister to Mr Andy Lopez

Attachment C
Attachment D

Attachment E

Attachment F

Attachment G

Summernats 36 Major Event Fund Application

Summernats 36 Major Event Fund Application — Appendix A — Event
Attendance and Visitation Overview

Summernats 36 Major Event Fund Application — Appendix B —
Summernats 35 2023 Economic Impact & Market Research Study
Summernats 36 Major Event Fund Application — Appendix C —
Marketing Plan

Summernats 36 Major Event Fund Application — Appendix D —
Sample Safety & Operations Plans
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Ranking: 9-10

Descriptor: Excellent

Strengths against the Criteria: Meets all requirements to an excellent (10) or very high (9) level. Highly convincing and credible. Response demonstrates superior understanding of, and performance 23ainst, the
criterion. Comprehensively documented with ali claims fully substantiated.

Ranking: 7-8

Descriptor: Very Good
Strengths against the Criteria: Meets all requirements to high level (8) or well above average level (7). Vens convincing and credible. Response demaonstrates very zood understanding of, and performance against, the

criterion. Documents provide complete details with alf claims adequately demonstrated and substantiated.

Ranking: 5-6

Descriptor: Good
Strengths against the Criteria: Meets all requirements to an above average (6) or avei 2ge (S) level. Response is convincing and credible, Response demonstrates gaod ur.c-standing of, and performance against, che

criterion. Minor uncertainties and shortcomings in the respondent’s claims and documentation.

Ranking: 3-4

Descriptor: Fair
Strength.zagainst the Criteria: Meets some of the requirements of the criterion, but is below averzge (4) or just fair (3). Resp<nse is generally cradible but not convincir.g. Response barely and demonstrates

understanding of, and performance against, the criterion. Respondent’s claims have some gaps.

Ranking: 1-2

Descriptor: Poor
Strengths against the Criteria: Response has significant shortcomings and deficiencies in demonstrating understanding of, and performance against, t"e criterion.

Ranking: 0

Descriptor: Not Answered
Strengths against the Criteria: Criterion not acdressed.



RANKING GUIDE

Score
9-10
7-8

5-6

Descriptor

Excellent

Very Good

Good

Fair

Poor
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Strengths against the Criteria

Meets all requirements to an excellent (10) or very high (9) level. Highly convincing and credible. Response demonstrates
superior understanding of, and performance against, the criterion. Comprehensively documented with all claims fully
substantiated.

Meets all requirements to high level (8) or well above average level (7). Very convincing and credible. Response
demonstrates very good understanding of, and performance against, the criterion. Documents provide complete details
with all claims adequately demonstrated and substantiated.

Meets all requirements to an above average (6) or average (5) level. Response is convincing and credible. Response
demonstrates good understanding of, and performance against, the criterion. Minor uncertainties and shortcomings in
the respondent’s claims and documentation.

Meets some of the requirements of the criterion, but is below average (4) or just fair (3). Response is generally credible
but not convincing. Response barely and demonstrates understanding of, and performance against, the criterion.
Respondent’s claims have some gaps.

Response has significant shortcomings and deficiencies in demonstrating understanding of, and performance against, the
criterion.

Not Answered

Criterion not addressed.
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| wish you all the best with your planning for the 2024 event and look forward to seeing the results
of further event development in the coming years.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Barr MLA
Chief Minister






















































ACT 611

Government

- DLO Request Container:
Chief Minister, Treasury and CMTEDD2023/51
Economic Development

e This plan was accepted by the EPA and a letter was issued to EPIC advising of this acceptance.
e Events which generate excessive noise from EPIC are authorised under an Events Credit
System. The Summernats event generally uses two of EPICs ten annual noise credits.
e During the event period noise impacts are monitored through EPA processes including:
o A Noise Management Plan (NMP) is required annually to be submitted and endorsed
by the EPA.
o It requires that an independent, suitably qualified person is engaged to monitor and
provide a follow-up report.
e Other agencies are also involved in ensuring that the event runs safely and smoothly. They
include ACT Policing, Roads, Transport and Health authorities.
e Pollutants emitted by motor vehicles are generally exempt from environmental regulations
but are managed by restricting burn outs to agreed periods under the environmental
authorisation.

Burn outs

e The Environmental Authorisation (EA) issued to Exhibition Park sets certain compliance
requirements relating to noise generated by the Summernats festival, including use of the ‘Go
to Whoa'’ strip, and the management of liquid waste.

e The agreed times and uses were done as part of a consultation piece with neighbouring
residents.

e The EPA has advised that investigations into the air emissions from the burnout events by
Robson Environmental in 2005 and 2010 found emissions were well below the previous and
current national health-based standards for PM10 and the occupational standards. While
there are other hazardous components associated with emissions from the burnout event,
they were also assessed as low, and due to the limited duration and frequency of the event,
unlikely to cause environmental harm.

e Summernats are obliged to operate in line with the EA and any reported breach can be
investigated by the EPA.

Safety and Security

e The reported anti-social activity during the event was disappointing.

e The ACT Government supports the actions of ACT Policing.

e The safety and security arrangements for the event will be reviewed, as they are every year
with the event organisers.

e Summernats engage private security for the event and work closely with ACT Policing for
crowd management.

e Prior to the Event Coordination Planning Group (ECPG) coordinated by Access Canberra
reviews all associated safety and security documentation developed by Summernats for the
event.

coviD

e As an outdoor event, all attendees were encouraged to protect themselves and the
community by maintaining good hand hygiene, manage physical distance where possible, and
to stay away if unwell and get tested.
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Government
S TE—— DLO Request Container:
Chlef Mlnlster, Treasury and CMTEDD2024/89
Economic Development
o Single point of entry and exit for entrant vehicles to maximize vehicle flow through the
site.
o Proactive action to remove cars and drivers participating in dangerous behavior.
Increase number of security personnel.
o Show stop procedures to remove cars from the cruise route in the case of escalated poor
behaviour.
The ACT Government is aware of an alleged incident between patrons and crowd safety
officer at the Summernats 36 on Saturday afternoon.

O

The ACT Government understands that Summernats organisers and appropriate authorities
will undertake an investigation of the alleged incident.

The safety and security arrangements for the event will be reviewed in conjunction with ACT
Policing and Access Canberra, as they are every year with the event organisers.

Summernats engage private security for the event and work closely with ACT Policing for
crowd management.

Prior to the Festival, Summernats developed a Safety, Security and Emergency Management
Plan for the event. This plan was reviewed by relevant ACT Government agencies including
Access Canberra, Worksafe ACT and Venues Canberra.

Braddon Fringe Festival

The Braddon Fringe Festival was established and is based on ongoing discussions with local
businesses and residents who seek a managed event to address previous concerns about
unofficial gatherings in Braddon.

The Summernats organisers have shown a strong commitment to a more inclusive and family-
friendly approach, and this was the expectation of the Braddon Fringe Festival in 2024.
Burnouts were not permitted, and safety measures were in place, including limited access
and cruising.

These conditions applied to the limited number of Summernats entrants (approx. 200 per
night} which are identified with an entrant sticker to allow access to Lonsdale Street. The
Summernats team provided security and crowd management, road closures, traffic
management, event cleaning, waste removal and a hotline was circulated to businesses and
residents to report any concerns during the event.

The Braddon Fringe Festival aims to activate the precinct during what would traditionally be a
quieter time for businesses. In previous years, the Fringe Festival has brought about
significant social and economic benefits, with increased visitation and a proactively managed
atmosphere.

Event approvals

Exhibition Park Corporation holds an Environmental Authorisation (006) issued by the EPA.
The Environmental Authorisation is designed to minimise environmental harm from major
events at EPIC including Summernats.

While Summernats is a privately run event, the ACT Government works closely with the
owners and all responsible agencies to ensure that the event is conducted safely and that
measures are in line with relevant legislation and authorisation.

A coordinated ACT Government approach occurs for major event approvals, via Access
Canberra.

This follows submission of relevant event documentation to seek approvals for all
components of the event (i.e.: noise, liquor, traffic management, fireworks)
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Government

- DLO Request Container:
Chief Minister, Treasury and CMTEDD2024/89
Economic Development

e For Venues Canberra- the Major Event Emergency Plan (MEEP) was endorsed, and EPIC was
handed to the organisers on 18 December 2023.

Noise and Waste - Environmental authorisation
e As part of the event approvals required to stage the event, EPIC in consultation with
Summernats lodged a noise management plan through the Environment Protection Authority
(EPA).
e This plan was accepted by the EPA and a letter was issued to EPIC advising of this acceptance.
e Events which generate excessive noise from EPIC are authorised under an Events Credit
System. The Summernats event generally uses two of EPIC’s ten annual noise credits.
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
to Whoa' strip, and the management of liquid waste.

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

e The EPA undertook testing at the 2024 event but it is too early for results to be made
available.

e Summernats are obliged to operate in line with the EA and any reported breach can be
investigated by the EPA.
































